

Rutland County Council

Catmose Oakham Rutland LE15 6HP Telephone 01572 722577 Email: goverance@rutland.gov.uk

Minutes of the SPECIAL MEETING of the RUTLAND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD held via Zoom on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 at 2.00 pm

PRESENT

	INCOLITY .		
1.	Councillor S Harvey	Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Adult	
	(Chair)	Care	
2.	Fay Bayliss	Deputy Director of Integration and Transformation,	
		LLR CCGs	
3.	Lindsey Booth (Insp)	NPA Commander Melton & Rutland, Leicestershire	
		Police	
4.	Hilary Fox (Dr)	Clinical Director, Rutland Health Primary Care	
		Network	
5.	Janet Underwood (Dr)	Chair of Healthwatch Rutland	
6.	John Edwards	Associate Director for Transformation for Mental	
		Health, Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust	
7.	Mike Sandys	Director of Public Health for Leicestershire &	
		Rutland, LCC	
8.	Sandra Taylor	Health and Wellbeing Integration Lead, RCC	
9.	Vivienne Robbins	Consultant in Public Health, RCC	

APOLOGIES:

•	0200120.		
10.	Fiona Myers	Interim Director of Mental Health Services, Leicestershire	
		Partnership NHS Trust	
11.	Louise Platt	Executive Director of Care and Business Partnerships,	
		Longhurst Group	
12.	Mark Powell	Deputy Chief Executive, Leicestershire Partnership NHS	
		Trust	
13.	Mel Thwaites	Associate Director: Children and Families, LLR CCG	
14.	Simon Down	Acting Chief Executive/Monitoring Officer, Office of Police	
		and Crime Commissioner	

ABSENT:

	15.		Head of Community Health Services, Leicestershire NHS Partnership
ĺ	16.	Sheila Fletcher	Chief Operating Officer, Citizens Advice Rutland

PORTFOLIO HOLDER PRESENT:

1	7.	Councillor D Wilby	Portfolio Holder for Education and Children's
			Services

OFFICERS PRESENT:

18.	John Morley	Strategic Director for Adults and Health (DASS)
-----	-------------	---

19.	Dawn Godfrey	Strategic Director of Children and Families (DCS)
20.	Sarah Prema	Executive Director of Strategy and Planning, LLR CCGs
21.	Adhvait Sheth	Strategic Planning Manager, LLR CCGs
22.	Charlotte Summers	Integration and Transformation Manager, LLR CCGs
23.	Jane Narey	Scrutiny Officer

IN ATTENDANCE:

24.	Councillor P Ainsley	Chair of the Primary Care Task and Finish Group
25.	Councillor R Powell	County Councillor

1 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES RECEIVED

Councillor Harvey welcomed everyone to the special meeting of the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board. Apologies were received from Melanie Thwaites, Simon Down, Mark Powell, Louise Platt and Fiona Myers, who had sent a representative, John Edwards

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

3 PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

The Clerk confirmed that one question had been received from Mr Godfrey Jennings.

Mr Godfrey Jennings joined the meeting at 2.32 p.m.

Mr Jennings addressed the Board with his question regarding the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Councillor Harvey gave a verbal response and confirmed that a full written response would be sent to Mr Jennings and would be published with the minutes.

---000--Mr Godfrey Jennings left the meeting at 2.38 p.m.
---000---

4 QUESTIONS SUBMITTED AT SHORT NOTICE

The Clerk confirmed that one question had been submitted at short notice from Mrs Susan Pickwoad who was not present at the meeting due to the earlier IT issues.

The Clerk confirmed that details of Mrs Pickwoad's question and the response would be sent to her and published with the minutes of the meeting.

5 QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS

There were no questions with notice from members.

6 JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY AND PLACE LED DELIVERY PLAN

Report No. 42/2022 was received from Councillor Harvey as the Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Care. During the discussion, the following points were noted:

- Councillor Harvey informed members that the Board could not legally endorse the
 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) as this would require the Board to
 make a decision, which it was not legally allowed to do whilst meeting virtually. It
 was agreed to defer the decision to the next meeting of the Rutland Health and
 Wellbeing Board on the 5th April 2022 when the meeting would be held in person in
 the Council Chamber at the Council offices in Oakham.
- The strategy and delivery plan were detailed but remained evolving working documents that were flexible to adapt and change as the reconfiguration of UHL (University Hospitals of Leicester) progressed.
- Rutland had a clear vision and a comprehensive delivery plan as detailed in Appendix B.
- Key performance indicators were identified in Appendix D, including current values
 to serve as baselines. It was noted that this was just the beginning of the journey
 for Rutland so the document would evolve as the journey progressed, including
 developing core quantified targets with involved partners in line with the confirmed
 timing and scope actions in the plan.
- A quarterly update report would be submitted to the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board.
- Patient access to all services was being investigated including the availability of public transport, with the aim of equitable access for all.
- It was suggested that the delivery plan should include a 'crisis plan' to cover such things as a pandemic or other health emergency.
- Staff shortages within the health service were noted and it was proposed that there should be a focus on staff training including the offer of training and development to graduates and school leavers.
- Cross border working remained an issue and work was ongoing locally between neighbouring areas regarding integration to ensure a smooth transition for patients from Rutland to other areas and vice versa.
- The role of the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board was being reviewed and this
 would give the opportunity to develop the Board into something ideal for Rutland
 moving forward. The groups reporting into the Health and Wellbeing board were
 also being extended to facilitate ongoing collaboration and ensure that there was
 clear ownership and accountability around delivery of the strategy's seven
 priorities.
- It was important that the public should be kept informed and included in the conversations regarding the development of the Board and the integration work being discussed.
- It was proposed that to monitor the progress of the plan, an annual update on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and the JHWS should be reviewed in detail by the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board i.e. what had worked well or needed more work, what had changed as a result and how this would inform future priorities.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee:

- a) **NOTED** the context and purpose of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS).
- b) **NOTED** the report detailing the outcomes of the JHWS consultation exercise.
- c) **AGREED TO DEFER** the endorsement of Rutland Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and its associated initial Delivery Plan, attached at Appendices A and B of this report, including: an extension to the life of the strategy from three to five years (2022-27); and adjustments to the structure of the Delivery Plan's priorities.
- d) **AUTHORISED** the Directors for Adult Social Care and Public Health, in consultation with the Cabinet Member with portfolio for Health, Wellbeing and Adult Care to oversee work to further refine the delivery plan leading up to the Strategy launch, working with local stakeholders.
- e) **APPROVED** the proposed evolution of the Health and Wellbeing Board, including adopting the 'Do, sponsor, watch' approach to prioritising actions, reviewing the terms of reference of the board and subgroups and developing an engagement strategy including a participation group to support development of the board.

7 UPDATE ON STEP UP TO GREAT MENTAL HEALTH

A verbal update was received from John Edwards, Associate Director for Transformation for Mental Health, Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust. During the discussion, the following points were noted:

- Details of the immediate priority areas would be distributed to the group once approved by the LPT Board at the end of March 2022.
- Governance for mental health would consist of place-based delivery groups which would cover all ages i.e. children, young people and adults. A draft document would be distributed in March 2022 for review.
- Projects would be created around a place or system that would work for the population of Rutland.
- £1m in grant money was available across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR). The funding would be reviewed by the relevant panel in March 2022 for deployment/allocation.
- A 'Mental Health Neighbourhood Lead' would be allocated in Rutland to bring partners together. It was agreed that it would be a good for this person to link in with Rutland's Family Hub development. A feasibility study including physical space for the Family Hub was to be done so it would be good to feed into this study regarding a possible space for the mental health groups. It was agreed that the Family Hub Programme Manager would link in with Emma Jane Perkins, Head of Community Care Services to take this matter forward.
- Investment in adult social care roles had been made by Leicestershire County Council to ensure sufficient resources to cover LLR.
- Rutland was to be used as an 'innovation site' to bring partners to work locally together. This would be a good start to equalize mental health with physical health and provide more mental health support services in the community.
- It was suggested that the plan needed to include the mental health care provided by the military to serving members and veterans. Councillor Harvey reported that the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board was in discussions with the armed forces to have a representative at future meetings.
- It was noted that mental health support in Rutland should include support for men and particularly men working in agriculture e.g. farmers, labourers etc.

The Chair paused the meeting for a break at 3.00 p.m. and re-started the meeting at 3.10 p.m.

---000----

8 PRIMARY CARE TASK AND FINISH GROUP: PRELIMINARY REPORT

The preliminary report from the Primary Care Task and Finish Group was presented by Councillor Ainsley, Chair of the Primary Care Task and Finish Group. During the discussion, the following points were noted:

- Over 900 responses were received as part of the patient survey, which had been undertaken via leaflet distribution, face-to-face meetings and telephone conversations as well as online.
- The Task and Finish Group continued to collate information for publication in the final report.
- The final report would detail recommendations and proposed actions for each committee before being presented to the Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board and Council.
- The feedback from patients differed between the various medical practices and had been very informative.
- The preliminary report had been distributed to the medical practices, the Integrated Care System (ICS) and the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Groups (LLR CCG).
- Dr Fox, Clinical Director of the ICS and Rachna Vyas, Executive Director of Integration & Transformation at the LLR CCG had attended the meeting of the Primary Care Task and Finish Group on the 21st February 2022. Their presentation and the subsequent discussion were both interesting and informative in equal measure and showed their depth of knowledge regarding the proposed Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
- Councillor Ainsley publicly thanked everyone for their assistance in the production
 of the report and confirmed that the Local Authority would welcome the opportunity
 to continue working in close collaboration with all stakeholders to ensure that the
 voice of Rutland residents was heard in such matters as community healthcare
 and integrated services.
- It was confirmed that the recommendations from the Primary Care Task and Finish Group would need to link in with the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
- Engagement with the community should be continued and improved. The community had commented that they had been informed of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy but had not been involved in the discussions regarding the how, what and why.
- Concern was expressed regarding the housing growth and the number of care homes planned for Rutland. It was reported that no definitive numbers were available due to the lack of a Local Plan from the local authority.
- Councillor Ainsley confirmed that an asset review was being undertaken by the Council but that the estates plan within the JHWS also needed to be considered by the Task and Finish Group.
- Councillor Ainsley agreed that the communication between GP practices should be improved including the sharing of good practice.

RESOLVED

That the Committee:

a) **REPEATED** the patient survey within 12 months when the health services were more 'back to normal' as the changes made by the GP practices were recent and were done whilst staff were under immense pressure from the Covid pandemic.

9 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday, 5th April at 2.00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, Catmose and via Zoom - https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88171089954

Agreed Agenda Items:

- 1. New Terms of Reference
- 2. Rutland Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Place Led Plan)
- 3. Changes to Transport for Accessing Health Care (inc. the new Bus Service Improvement Plan)
- 4. Primary Care Task and Finish Group: Final Report

---oOo---Chairman closed the meeting at 4.37 pm. ---oOo---